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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
ROYAL WOLVERHAMPTON NHS TRUST 
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust (“the Trust”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity and Statement of 
Cash Flows, and the related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1. 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its 
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounting policies directed by the 
Secretary of State with the consent of the Treasury as being relevant to NHS Trusts in 
England and included in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting 
Manual 2019/20. 

Basis for opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs 
(UK)”) and applicable law.  Our responsibilities are described below.  We have fulfilled our 
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Trust in accordance with, UK ethical 
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard.  We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. 

Going concern  

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they have 
not been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Trust without 
the transfer of its services to another public sector entity.  They have also concluded that there 
are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue 
as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the 
going concern period”). 

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis 
of accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast 
significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of 
approval of the financial statements.  In our evaluation of the Director’s conclusions we 
considered the inherent risks to the Trust’s operations and analysed how these risks might 
affect the Trust’s financial resources, or ability to continue its operations over the going concern 
period.  We have nothing to report in these respects. 

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may 
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they 
were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a 
guarantee that the Trust will continue in operation. 

Other information in the Annual Report  

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report 
together with the financial statements.  Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as 
explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on 
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge.  Based solely on that work 
we have not identified material misstatements in the other information.  In our opinion the other 
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information included in the Annual Report for the financial year is consistent with the financial 
statements. 

Annual Governance Statement  

We are required to report to you if the Annual Governance Statement has not been prepared 
in accordance with the requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2019/20.  We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Remuneration and Staff Report  

In our opinion the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been 
properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2019/20. 

Directors’ and Accountable Officer’s responsibilities  

As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for the 
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view.  They are also responsible for: 
such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing 
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been 
informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Trust without the transfer 
of its services to another public sector entity.  As explained more fully in the statement of the 
Chief Executive's responsibilities, as the Accountable Officer of the Trust, on Page 4 the 
Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring that annual statutory accounts are prepared in 
a format directed by the Secretary of State. 

Auditor’s responsibilities 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our 
opinion in an auditor’s report.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS 

Report on the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources 

Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if the Trust has not made 
proper arrangement for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We have nothing to report in this respect. 

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

As explained in the statement set out on page 4, the Chief Executive, as the Accountable 
Officer, is responsible for ensuring that value for money is achieved from the resources 
available to the Trust.  We are required under section 21(3)(c), as amended by schedule 13 
paragraph 10(a), of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Trust 
has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 
of resources. 

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources are 
operating effectively. 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 
to the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in December 
2019 and updated in April 2020 as to whether the Trust had proper arrangements to ensure it 
took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable 
outcomes for taxpayers and local people.  We planned our work in accordance with the Code 
of Audit Practice and related guidance.  Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such 
work as we considered necessary. 

Statutory reporting matters  

We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and 
Auditor General (‘the Code of Audit Practice’)  to report to you if: 

• we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 because we have reason to believe that the Trust, or an officer of 
the Trust, is about to make, or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the 
body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to take a course of 
action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or 
deficiency; or 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014; or 

• we make a written recommendation to the Trust under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 

We have nothing to report in these respects. 

THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

This report is made solely to the Board of Directors of Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust, as a 
body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.  Our audit work 
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Board of the Trust, as a body, those matters 
we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Board of the Trust, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have 
formed. 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT  

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Royal Wolverhampton NHS 
Trust for the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

 

Andrew Bostock 
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Birmingham 
 
17 June 2020 
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1.2 Black Country and West Birmingham Healthier Futures Partnership (previously 
·STP) ANNUAL REPORT STATEMENT

In total, around 1.5 million people live in the five places of Wolverhampton, Walsall, Dudley,
Sandwell and West Birmingham. There are a number of challenges for our local populations,
including healthy life expectancy being lower than the national average by more than 6
years, higher numbers of people with mental health problems, high levels of infant mortality,
plus high levels of child and adult obesity and many people living with multiple long term
health conditions.
The Healthier Futures Partnership, previously known as the Black Country and West
Birmingham STP, is the collaboration between 18 organisations across local authorities, NHS
bodies and the voluntary and community sectors that has been established to address these
challenges.
The aims of the Healthier Futures Partnership are:
a) To improve the health of our population by reducing inequalities in health outcomes

and improving the quality of and access to services
b) To attract more people to work in health and care in our region through new ways of

working, better career opportunitie$, support and the ability to balance work and home
lives

c) To work together to build a sustainable health system that delivers safe, accessible
care and support in the right locations, in order to get the greatest value from the
money we spend.

There is much work to do in order to achieve our aims. However, progress has started, with 
closer collaboration already leading to stroke services having being reconfigured, pathology 
services consolidated to improve efficiency and turnaround times, advances made in 
personalised care arrangements and a new perinatal mental health community service. 

KEY HIGHLIGHTS 
This year saw the creation of our strategic plan, which sets out how health and care services 
in our local areas will be improved over the next five years. Services need to be designed 
and delivered for the benefit of the people who live and work within the Black Country and 
West Birmingham and so we engaged extensively with patients, public and staff in 
developing our plan, plus took account of feedback from staff, ·GPs, Health and Wellbeing 
Boards and governing bodies, as well as from all of the organisations in our partnership. 

Other key highlights included: 
• · The development of our clinical strategy covering twelve priority areas, alongside a 

primary care strategy focusing on GP and general practic� nurse recruitment and 
retention and also a digital enabling strategy. 

• The pilot of a rapid cancer diagnostic centre in Dudley from January 2020 with the aim
of rolling this out across the partnership by July, as well as a plan to improve urology
services across the system.

• A local maternity and neonatal system plan which has already resulted in a significant
reduction in smoking rates during pregnancy and has seen this system be the first,
nationally, to implement one shared care record across individual maternity units.

• The development of a digital app that will increase access to health and care services
and offer our population alternative pathways via mobile phones, tablets and PCs.

Another development was the creation of our Healthier Futures website, giving us an online 
presence to update people on our aims, projects, achievements and challenges. 
www.healthierfutures.co.uk 



PEOPLE · 

r�t:bj 
The Royal Wolverhampton 

NHS TrU$t 

I would like to thank all health and care colleagues throughout our system of care for their 
commitment, dedication and hard work during the past year. I'd also like to say a special 
thank you to Dr Helen Hibbs MBE, who will retire in April, having been the partnership lead 
for the past two years. Helen has made an invaluable contribution to the progress and 
success of the partnership and on behalf of everyone across the partnership, I'd like to wish 
her all the best for the future. 

I would also like to recognise all of the hard work and effort on the part of Sandwell and West 
Birmingham Hospital NHS Trust to reach agreement on the completion of the Midland 
Metropolitan Hospital, due to open in 2022 and key to the transformation of care in the local 
communities and to the redevelopment and regeneration of the surrounding area. 

Our partnership exists to benefit local people, and through our continued collaboration and 
working together, I am confident we can deliver truly integrated health and care services of 
which everyone in the Black Country and West Birmingham can be justifiably proud. 

Jonathan Fellows 
Independent Chair 
Black Country and West Birmingham Health.ier Futures Partnership 

2 The purpose of the system of internal control 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than 
to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust, 
to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of 
internal control has been in place in The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust for the year 
ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. 

l The Governance Framework of the Organisation

We have a well-established framework for governance to inform the Trust Board of 
operational and strategic risks as well as to provide assurance on busine$S performance 
and compliance. The framework sets in p)ace under the Trust Board a high level 
committee and management structure for the delivery of assured governance. 

Sub Trust Board assurance committees are constituted tb ensure the delegated operation 
of effective risk management systems, processes and outcomes. These committees 
inform and assure the Trust Board through the functioning and reporting of sub-groups 
. an9 specialist working groups defined in their terms of reference. 

In March 2020 internal audit reviewed the design and operation of the Trust's Risk 
Management Assurance Strategy and arrangements, which is underpinned by the Risk 
Management and Patient Safety Reporting Policy (OP10). The report conclusion is 
awaited at the time of this Report. Previous arid future recommendations are formed into 
an action plan that is regularly monitored by the Audit Committee. 



























have also been included in the latest audit report action plan. 
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The Royal Wolverhampton 

NHS Trust 

The audit recommended that the Datix Project Group reviews incident classifications ·and 
the when the Risk Management Reporting Policy is next reviewed it includes instructions 
on how Divisions / Directorates are expected to respond to Making it Better Alerts. Each of 
these recommendations have been included in the audit report action plan which will be 
audited again in twelve months-time. 

All Committees of the Trust Board (excluding TMC) are chaired by Non-Executive 
Directors to refl�ct the need for independence and objectivity, ensuring that effective 
governance and controls are in place. This structure facilitates appropriate scrutiny and 
challenge of the performance of the organisation. The Committees met regularly 
throughout the year, and reported to the Trust Board following their meetings. 

We have a well-developed framework for assessing on-going compliance with CQC 
Fundamental standards of care (and 5 key questions of Safe, Caring, Effective, 
Responsive and Well Led) known as Quality Review Visits (QRV's). The assessment of 
compliance uses a combination of quality performance indicators, clinical audits and 
observational ward and department visits to measure on-going compliance with care 
standards. Following each QRV we use the CQC rating characteristics to make 
judgements about compliance with the fundamental standards of care and judgments are 
cross checked and challenged at Divisional Management Performance & Quality meetings 
and by Executives at Trust groups. This approach allows for information to be t�iangulated 
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between performance results and observation of care standards and allows for assurance 
to be reported from ward to Board . 

. The QRV programme aims to: 
• Create a positive and proactive approach to observational assessment and external

reviews.
• Ensure robust / reliable compliance reporting: ward to Trust Board.
• Support continuous quality improvement and patient sc;1fety.
• Highlight good practice and areas of excellence.

During 2019 we conducted six QRVs identifying areas of good and excellent practice to be 
shared, as well as areas for improvement for local follow up. The QRVs are well embedded 
within the Trust with positive feedback and quality benefits being reported by both the clinical 
areas visited and those conducting the inspections. 
A follow-up visit process commenced 2017 where areas requiring improvements are 
followed up. One has been completed which showed improvements. 

In areas not currently undertaking the QRV programme, self-assessments have been 
completed against CQC requirements with local improvement actions taken forward. The 
2019/20 programme included community areas and 2020/21 programme will include GP 
Practices. 

Vertical Integration of Primary care - The Trust continues to manage GP practices as part 
of Vertical Integration (VI). During 2019/20 reports pertaining to VI quality/safety compliance 
and performance have been integrated within the Trust reporting structure e.g. QSIG 
dashboard, IQPR indicators etc. 

Black Country Pathology Services - The Trust is host to a new Black-Country 
Pathology Service (BCPS) which went live on the 1 st Oct 18. BCPS, is a 
partnership across the four 





























Statement of Comprehensive Income

2019/20 2018/19

Note £000 £000
Operating income from patient care activities 3 549,223 489,963 
Other operating income 4 126,891 103,012 
Operating expenses 7, 9 (656,732) (579,390)

Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations 19,382 13,585 

Finance income 12 186 127 
Finance expenses 13 (2,126) (2,074)
PDC dividends payable (10,589) (10,316)

Net finance costs (12,529) (12,263)
Other gains / (losses) 14 53 60 

Surplus / (deficit) for the year 6,906 1,382 

Other comprehensive income

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:

Revaluations 18 3,561 (2,880)
Total comprehensive income / (expense) for the period 10,467 (1,498)

Optional for NHS trusts
Adjusted financial performance (control total basis):

Surplus / (deficit) for the period 6,906 1,382 
Remove net impairments not scoring to the Departmental expenditure limit (1,408) 1,731 
Remove I&E impact of capital grants and donations 156 (92)
Remove 2018/19 post audit PSF reallocation (2019/20 only) (511) 0

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) 5,143 3,021 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

Public dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve Other reserves

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2019 - brought forward 237,185 60,892 190 26,621 324,888 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 0 0 0 6,906 6,906 

Revaluations 0 3,561 0 0 3,561 

Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets 0 (69) 0 69 0 

Public dividend capital received 13,461 0 0 0 13,461 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2020 250,646 64,384 190 33,595 348,815 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2019

Public dividend 

capital

Revaluation 

reserve Other reserves

Income and 

expenditure 

reserve Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 1 April 2018 - brought forward 232,753 67,355 190 21,656 321,954 
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 0 0 0 1,382 1,382 
Revaluations 0 (2,880) 0 0 (2,880)
Transfer to retained earnings on disposal of assets 0 (3,583) 0 3,583 0 
Public dividend capital received 4,432 0 0 0 4,432 

Taxpayers' and others' equity at 31 March 2019 237,185 60,892 190 26,621 324,888 
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Information on reserves

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to Trusts by the
Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable to the
Department of Health and Social Care as the public dividend capital dividend.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the
extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that a previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of
economic benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Financial assets reserve

This reserve comprises changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. When these instruments are derecognised, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised as other
comprehensive income or expenditure are recycled to income or expenditure, unless the assets are equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as a result of irrevocable election at recognition.

Merger reserve

This reserve reflects balances formed on merger of NHS bodies.

Income and expenditure reserve

The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the Trust.

Page 41



Statement of Cash Flows
2019/20 2018/19

Note £000 £000 

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating surplus / (deficit) 19,382 13,585 
Non-cash income and expense:

Depreciation and amortisation 7.1 20,508 14,575 
Net impairments 8 (1,327) 1,731 
Income recognised in respect of capital donations 4 (102) (289)
(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets (26,314) (44)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories (294) (250)
Increase / (decrease) in payables and other liabilities 14,826 4,261 
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 1,792 (1,648)

Net cash flows from / (used in) operating activities 28,471 31,921 

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received 186 127 
Purchase of intangible assets (646) (1,877)
Purchase of PPE and investment property (31,223) (21,571)
Sales of PPE and investment property 53 860 
Receipt of cash donations to purchase assets 102 289 

Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities (31,528) (22,172)

Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received 13,461 4,432 
Capital element of finance lease rental payments (165) (227)
Capital element of PFI, LIFT and other service concession payments (1,818) (1,785)
Interest paid on finance lease liabilities (13) (17)
Interest paid on PFI, LIFT and other service concession obligations (2,116) (2,056)
PDC dividend (paid) / refunded (10,234) (11,090)

Net cash flows from / (used in) financing activities (885) (10,743)

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,942) (994)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward 15,988 16,982 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 22.1 12,045 15,988 
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Notes to the Accounts

Note 1 Accounting policies and other information

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

The Department of Health and Social Care has directed that the financial statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting
requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM
Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the GAM 2019/20 issued
by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM follow International Financial
Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury,
which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a choice of accounting policy, the
accounting policy that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the Trust for the purpose of giving
a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted are described below. These have been applied
consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Note 1.2 Going concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. IAS 1 requires the Trust to assess, as part of the accounts
preparation process, its ability to continue as a going concern. In the context of non-trading entities in the public sector the
anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The
financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis unless there are plans for, or no realistic alternative other
than the dissolution of the Trust without the transfer of its services to another entity within the public sector. The impact of
Covid-19 on the Going concern assessment has been evaluated but deemed to not affect the going concern status of the
Trust.

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Note 1.3 Revenue from contracts with customers

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the definition
of a contract to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial asset that is
not classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS). 

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring promised goods/services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to
those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating to performance obligations satisfied in
that year. Where the Trust’s entitlement to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a contract receivable
will be recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other than the passage of time, a
contract asset will be recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to a performance obligation that is to
be satisfied in a future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a contract liability. 

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners in respect of health care services. The timing of
the satisfaction of performance obligations is in line with typical timing of payment (i.e. 14-30 days dependant on credit
terms agreed with customer). At the year end, the Trust accrues income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a
patient care spell is incomplete. Where income is received for a specific activity which is to be delivered in a subsequent
financial year, that income is deferred.

Revenue from NHS contracts

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health care services. A performance obligation
relating to delivery of a spell of health care is generally satisfied over time as healthcare is received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer as the Trust performs it. The customer in such a contract is the commissioner, but the
customer benefits as services are provided to their patient. Even where a contract could be broken down into separate
performance obligations, healthcare generally aligns with paragraph 22(b) of the Standard entailing a delivery of a series of
goods or services that are substantially the same and have a similar pattern of transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrues
income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a patient care spell is incomplete. This accrual is disclosed as a
contract receivable as entitlement to payment for work completed is usually only dependent on the passage of time.
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Revenue is recognised to the extent that collection of consideration is probable. Where contract challenges from
commissioners are expected to be upheld, the Trust reflects this in the transaction price and derecognises the relevant
portion of income.

Where the Trust is aware of a penalty based on contractual performance, the Trust reflects this in the transaction price for
its recognition of revenue. Revenue is reduced by the value of the penalty.

The Trust does not receive income where a patient is readmitted within 30 days of discharge from a previous planned stay.
This is considered an additional performance obligation to be satisfied under the original transaction price. An estimate of
readmissions is made at the year end this portion of revenue is deferred as a contract liability.

The Trust receives income from commissioners under Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) schemes. The
Trust agrees schemes with its commissioner but they affect how care is provided to patients. That is, the CQUIN payments
are not considered distinct performance obligations in their own right; instead they form part of the transaction price for
performance obligations under the contract. CQUIN payments are recognised when there is a high probability that income
will not be reversed.

Revenue from research contracts

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligations are satisfied.
For some contracts, it is assessed that the revenue project constitutes one performance obligation over the course of the
multi-year contract. In these cases it is assessed that the Trust’s interim performance does not create an asset with
alternative use for the Trust, and the Trust has an enforceable right to payment for the performance completed to date. It is
therefore considered that the performance obligation is satisfied over time, and the Trust recognises revenue each year
over the course of the contract. Some research income alternatively falls within the provisions of IAS 20 for government
grants.

The NHS Trust receives income from the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) for the hosting of the Greater
Midlands Clinical Research Network, which comprises the majority of the Trust's Research and Development Income.

NHS injury cost recovery scheme

The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost recovery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured
individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insurer. The Trust
recognises the income when performance obligations are satisfied. In practical terms this means that treatment has been
given, it receives notification from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit, has completed
the NHS2 form and confirmed there are no discrepancies with the treatment. The income is measured at the agreed tariff
for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful
debts in line with IFRS 9 requirements of measuring expected credit losses over the lifetime of the asset.

Provider sustainability fund (PSF) and Financial recovery fund (FRF)

The PSF and FRF enable providers to earn income linked to the achievement of financial controls and performance
targets. Income earned from the funds is accounted for as variable consideration.

Note 1.4 Other forms of income

Grants and donations

Government grants are grants from government bodies other than income from commissioners or Trusts for the provision
of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income to
match that expenditure. Where the grants is used to fund capital expenditure, it is credited to the consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income once conditions attached to the grant have been met. Donations are treated in the same way
as government grants.

Apprenticeship service income

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Government's apprenticeship service is recognised as
income at the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training provider
from the Trust's Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the Department for Education, the corresponding
notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.
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Note 1.5 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned
but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.

Pension costs 

NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Both schemes are
unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way
that would enable employers to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
scheme is accounted for as though it is a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Trust is taken as equal to the
employer's pension contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. The contributions are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is
due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the time
the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 

Local Government Pension Scheme

Some employees are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme which is a defined benefit pension scheme.
The scheme assets and liabilities attributable to these employees can be identified and are recognised in the Trust’s
accounts. The assets are measured at fair value, and the liabilities at the present value of future obligations. 

The increase in the liability arising from pensionable service earned during the year is recognised within operating
expenses. The net interest cost during the year arising from the unwinding of the discount on the net scheme liabilities
is recognised within finance costs. Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan are recognised in the income and
expenditure reserve and reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive
income’.

Note 1.6 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where
it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment. 

Note 1.7 Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations occur where activities either cease without transfer to another entity, or transfer to an entity
outside of the boundary of Whole of Government Accounts, such as private or voluntary sectors. Such activities are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. Activities that are transferred to other bodies within the boundary of Whole of
Government Accounts are ‘machinery of government changes’ and treated as continuing operations.
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Note 1.8 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:    

• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes
• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust
• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year 
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably
• the item has cost of at least £5,000, or
• collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, where the assets
are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have similar disposal dates and
are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, eg, plant
and equipment, then these components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful lives.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the carrying
amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits or service potential deriving from the cost
incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be determined reliably.
Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capitalised if it meets the criteria for recognition
above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that does not generate additional future
economic benefits or service potential, such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in the period in which it is incurred.

Measurement

Valuation

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable to acquiring
or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

Assets are measured subsequently at valuation. Assets which are held for their service potential and are in use (ie operational
assets used to deliver either front line services or back office functions) are measured at their current value in existing use.
Assets that were most recently held for their service potential but are surplus with no plan to bring them back into use are
measured at fair value where there are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do not meet the definitions
of investment properties or assets held for sale.

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying values are not
materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing use are
determined as follows:

   •  	Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use
   •  	Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset basis.

For specialised assets, current value in existing use is interpreted as the present value of the asset's remaining service
potential, which is assumed to be at least equal to the cost of replacing that service potential. Specialised assets are therefore
valued at their depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a modern equivalent asset (MEA) basis. An MEA basis assumes that
the asset will be replaced with a modern asset of equivalent capacity and meeting the location requirements of the services
being provided. Assets held at depreciated replacement cost have been valued on an alternative site basis where this would
meet the location requirements.

Valuation guidance issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors states that valuations are performed net of VAT
where the VAT is recoverable by the entity. This basis has been applied to the Trust’s Private Finance Initiative (PFI) scheme
where the construction is completed by a special purpose vehicle and the costs have recoverable VAT for the trust.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss.
Cost includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with IAS 23, borrowings costs. Assets are revalued and
depreciation commences when the assets are brought into use.

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are valued
at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not considered to be
materially different from current value in existing use. 
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An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same
asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously
charged there. A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as
an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and,
thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit is to be taken to
expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining useful lives in a manner consistent with the
consumption of economic or service delivery benefits. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not
depreciated. 

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ cease to be depreciated upon the reclassification.
Assets in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statement of Financial Position PFI contract assets are not
depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the Trust, respectively. 

Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they reverse a revaluation
decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating
expenditure.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is an available balance for the asset
concerned, and thereafter are charged to operating expenses. 

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of
‘other comprehensive income’.

Impairments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service potential in
the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve to the income and
expenditure reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the balance
in the revaluation reserve attributable to that asset before the impairment.

An impairment that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to the
extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operating expenditure to the
extent that the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never been recognised. Any
remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original impairment, a transfer was made
from the revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is transferred back to the revaluation reserve
when the impairment reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as revaluation gains.

De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once all of the following criteria are met. The sale must be highly
probable and the asset available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value less costs 
to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have been
met.

Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’ and
instead is retained as an operational asset and the asset’s useful life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when scrapping
or demolition occurs.

Donated and grant funded assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The
donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future economic
benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is
deferred within liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been met.

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property, plant
and equipment. 
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Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) transactions

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

Min life Max life

Years Years

Buildings, excluding dwellings 1 70 
Dwellings 4 31 
Plant & machinery 5 15 
Transport equipment 5 7 
Information technology 4 5 
Furniture & fittings 7 10 

Note 1.9 Intangible assets 

Recognition

Measurement

Useful lives of intangible assets 

Min life Max life

Years Years

Software licences 4 5 

Intangible assets are amortised over their expected useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of economic or service delivery benefits.

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset.  The range of useful lives are shown in the table below:

PFI transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s FReM , are accounted for as ‘on-Statement of
Financial Position’ by the Trust. In accordance with HM Treasury’s FReM, the underlying assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together
with an equivalent liability. Subsequently, the assets are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets as appropriate.

The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the liability, a finance cost, the charges for services and lifecycle replacement of
components of the asset. The element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is treated as contingent rent and is expensed
as incurred. 

The service charge is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown in the table below:

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or the lease term, unless the Trust expects to acquire the asset at
the end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated in the same manner as owned assets above.

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from the rest of the Trust’s business or
which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service
potential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Internally generated intangible assets

Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised as intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised where it meets the requirements set out in IAS 38.

Subsequently intangible assets are measured at current value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible assets are valued at the lower of
depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income generating. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in
the same manner as for property, plant and equipment. An intangible asset which is surplus with no plan to bring it back into use is valued at fair value
where there are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do not meet the definitions of investment properties or assets held for sale.

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Amortisation

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract, ‘lifecycle replacement’, are measured and capitalised at the time they are provided
by the operator at their fair value where they meet the NHS Trust’s criteria for capital expenditure.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is predetermined for each year of the contract from the operator’s planned
programme of lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later than expected, a short-term accrual or prepayment is
recognised respectively.

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is recognised as an expense when the
replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the contract, the difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred
income balance is recognised. The deferred income is released to operating income over the shorter of the remaining contract period or the useful
economic life of the replacement component.

Software

Software which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment.
Software which is not integral to the operation of hardware, eg application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset.

Intangible assets are recognised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to create, produce and prepare the asset to the point that it
is capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
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Note 1.10 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured using the
weighted average cost method. This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover
of stocks.

Note 1.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded
at current values.

Note 1.12 Carbon Reduction Commitment scheme (CRC)

The CRC scheme is a mandatory cap and trade scheme for non-transport CO2 emissions. The Trust is registered with the
CRC scheme, and is therefore required to surrender to the Government an allowance for every tonne of CO2 it emits
during the financial year. A liability and related expense is recognised in respect of this obligation as CO2 emissions are
made.

The carrying amount of the liability at the financial year end will therefore reflect the CO2 emissions that have been made
during that financial year, less the allowances (if any) surrendered voluntarily during the financial year in respect of that
financial year.

The liability will be measured at the amount expected to be incurred in settling the obligation. This will be the cost of the
number of allowances required to settle the obligation.

Allowances acquired under the scheme are recognised as intangible assets.

Note 1.13 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument,
and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument. The GAM
expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which give rise to arrangements that in all other
respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by ONS.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in
accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent
which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable transaction
costs except where the asset or liability is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is taken
as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoted market prices or valuation techniques.

Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised
and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below.

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting contractual cash
flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes cash equivalents, contract and
other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under lease arrangements and loans receivable and
payable.

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment (for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and a financing
income or expense. In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Social Care, the effective interest rate is
the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan. 

Impairment of financial assets

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, contract receivables and contract assets
or assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the Trust recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses. 

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment for contract and other receivables, contract assets and lease
receivables, measuring expected losses as at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For other financial assets, the
loss allowance is initially measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (stage 1) and subsequently at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk assessed for the financial asset significantly increases
(stage 2).

At the end of the reporting period, the Trust assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value
through profit and loss’ require an allowance for an expected credit loss. Lifetime credit losses are recognised if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after initial recognition of the asset and
that have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. However NHS bodies are not allowed to recognise
any impairments against intra-DHSC balances as it is expected that they will be recoverable, therefore no lifetime credit
losses are made against NHS bodies.

When estimating lifetime credit losses in relation to Injury Cost Recovery (ICR) receivables, the GAM instructs the Trust to
include an amount within the credit loss allowances for contract receivables to reflect income that is not expected to be
recoverable. Each year, the Compensation Recovery Unit (CRU) advises a percentage probability of not receiving the
income. For 2019/20 this is 21.79% (2018/19 21.89%).

For financial assets that have become credit impaired since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses at the
reporting date are measured as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 

Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and reduce the
net carrying value of the financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position.

Derecognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the
Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Page 50



Note 1.14 Leases

The Trust as a lessee

The Trust as a lessor

Note 1.15 Provisions 

Nominal rate

Short-term Up to 5 years 0.51%
Medium-term After 5 years up to 10 years 0.55%
Long-term Exceeding 10 years 1.99%

Inflation rate

Year 1 1.90%
Year 2 2.00%
Into perpetuity 2.00%

Clinical negligence costs

Early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions both use the HM Treasury's pension discount rate of minus 0.5% in real
terms.

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which, in
return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases,
the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on behalf of the
trust is disclosed at note 27.2 but is not recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for which it is
probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount. The amount
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources required to settle the obligation. Where the
effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using HM Treasury's discount
rates effective for 31 March 2020:

HM Treasury provides discount rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expected future cash flows are therefore adjusted 
for the impact of inflation before discounting using nominal rates. The following inflation rates are set by HM Treasury, effective 31 
March 2020:

Operating leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the Trust, the asset is recorded as property,
plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of
the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. The implicit
interest rate is that which produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability.

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for an item of property
plant and equipment. 

The annual rental charge is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate of finance
over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised
initially in other liabilities on the statement of financial position and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the classification for each
is assessed separately. 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust's net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Trust's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Finance leases

Operating leases

Leases of land and buildings

Finance leases
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Non-clinical risk pooling

The trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with the
costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are
charged to operating expenses when the liability arises. 

Note 1.16 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future
events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed in note 28 where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 28, unless the probability of a transfer of economic benefits
is remote. 

Contingent liabilities are defined as:

• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or

• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arise or
for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Note 1.17 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time
of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC is not a financial instrument
within the meaning of IAS 32. 

The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC is recorded at the value
received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the financial
year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for 
(i) donated and grant funded assets, 
(ii) average daily cash balances held with the Government Banking Services (GBS) and National Loans Fund (NLF) deposits,
excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital facility, and 
(iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable. 

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the
dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the annual
accounts. The dividend calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit of the annual
accounts.

Note 1.18 Value added tax 

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised
purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
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# Note 1.19 Foreign exchange 

The functional and presentational currency of the Trust is sterling.

A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange
rate on the date of the transaction. 

Where the Trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of Financial Position date:

• monetary items are translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date
of the transaction and
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date the
fair value was determined.

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on re-translation at the
Statement of Financial Position date) are recognised in income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same manner as other gains
and losses on these items.

# Note 1.20 Third party assets 

Assets belonging to third parties in which the Trust has no beneficial interest (such as money held on behalf of
patients) are not recognised in the accounts. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in
accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM . 

# Note 1.21 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the
health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore
subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different
categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged to the
relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis.

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations register which reports
on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.

# Note 1.22 Gifts

Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the expectation of any return. Gifts
include all transactions economically equivalent to free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for
its expected useful life, and the sale or lease of assets at below market value.

# Note 1.23 Transfers of functions from other NHS bodies

For functions that have been transferred to the Trust from another NHS body, the assets and liabilities transferred are
recognised in the accounts as at the date of transfer. The assets and liabilities are not adjusted to fair value prior to
recognition. 

For property, plant and equipment assets and intangible assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation / amortisation
balances from the transferring entity’s accounts are preserved on recognition in the Trust’s accounts. Where the
transferring body recognised revaluation reserve balances attributable to the assets, the Trust makes a transfer from its
income and expenditure reserve to its revaluation reserve to maintain transparency within public sector accounts. 
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Note 1.26 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

 -Leases

Note 1.27 Sources of estimation uncertainty

-Useful Economic Lives  

-Provisions

Note 1.24 Early adoption of standards, amendments and interpretations

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing standards have been early adopted in 2019/20.

Note 1.25 Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or adopted

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease and other interpretations and is
applicable in the public sector for periods beginning 1 April 2021. The standard provides a single accounting model for lessees, recognising
a right of use asset and obligation in the Statement of Financial Position for most leases: some leases are exempt through application of
practical expedients explained below. For those recognised in the Statement of Financial Position the standard also requires the
remeasurement of lease liabilities in specific circumstances after the commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the distinction between
operating and finance leases will remain and the accounting will be largely unchanged.

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Trust will apply this definition to new leases only and will
grandfather its assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts contain a lease.

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2021, the Trust will apply the standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
standard recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For existing operating leases with a remaining lease term of more
than 12 months and an underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease liability will be recognised equal to the value of remaining lease
payments discounted on transition at the Trust’s incremental borrowing rate will be a rate defined by HM Treasury. Currently this rate is
1.27%. The related right of use asset will be measured equal to the lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments. No
adjustments will be made on 1 April 2021 for existing finance leases.

For leases commencing in 2021/22, the Trust will not recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short term leases (less than or equal
to 12 months) or for leases of low value assets (less than £5,000). Right of use assets will be subsequently measured on a basis consistent
with owned assets and depreciated over the length of the lease term. 

When considering Provisions for events such as pension payments, NHS Resolution claims and other legal cases The Trust uses estimates
based on expert advice from agencies such as NHS Resolution, legal advice from Trust advisors and the experience of its managers.

In the application of the NHS Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and
the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of applying
the Trust’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

The Trust applies the tests contained in IAS17 to all of its present and proposed leases in order to ascertain if they should be classed as
operating or finance leases. Often the information available may be inconclusive and therefore judgement is made regarding the transfer of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the associated assets in order that a decision may be made.

The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

The Trust exercises judgement to determine the Useful Lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment and computer software.
Depreciation and amortisation is provided so as to write down the value of these assets to their residual value over their estimated Useful
Lives. Every care is taken to ensure that estimates are robust however factors such as unforeseen obsolescence or breakdown may impact
on the actual life of the asset held.                                                                                                                                                                                 
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Note 2 Operating Segments

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income 649,200 565,128 26,914 27,847 676,114 592,975 

Surplus/(Deficit)
Segment surplus/(deficit) (1,940) (1,947) 0 0 (1,940) (1,947)
Common costs (640,354) (561,800) (26,914) (27,847) (667,268) (589,647)

Surplus/(Deficit) 6,906 1,382 0 0 6,906 1,382 

Net Assets:
Segment net assets 348,815 324,888 0 0 348,815 324,888 

Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities 

All income from patient care activities relates to contract income recognised in line with accounting policy 1.3

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Acute services

Elective income 76,065 72,969 
Non elective income 137,723 116,601 
First outpatient income 31,968 32,090 
Follow up outpatient income 42,404 40,553 
A & E income 22,920 18,585 
High cost drugs income from commissioners (excluding pass-through costs) 46,330 47,991 
Other NHS clinical income 109,535 99,109 

Community services

Community services income from CCGs and NHS England 43,332 40,326 
Income from other sources (e.g. local authorities) 8,033 6,124 

All services

Private patient income 1,020 1,010 
Agenda for Change pay award central funding* 0 4,934 
Additional pension contribution central funding** 16,555 0 
Other clinical income 13,338 9,671 
Total income from activities 549,223 489,963 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision
Maker. The Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Trust Board that makes strategic decisions

The Trust has identified two operating segments:-

Healthcare Services

This is the core activity of the Trust. It is primarily the provision of NHS Healthcare services to patients, paid for by the relevant
NHS Comissioner. Income for this segment is disaggregated in Note 3.1 and Note 4 except for Research and Development
which includes Clinical Research Network to which the proportion relating to Clinical Research Network within Research and
Development is shown in this Note.

Clinical Research Network

*Additional costs of the Agenda for Change pay reform in 2018/19 received central funding. From 2019/20 this funding is 
incorporated into tariff for individual services.

**The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge) from 1 April 
2019. For 2019/20, NHS providers continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the additional amount being paid 
over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost and related funding have been recognised in these accounts.

The Trust hosts the Greater Midlands Clinical Research Network, which has a separate Chief Operating Officer and is separately
accounted for, so is an operating segment for the Trust. It receives funds from the National Institute for Health Research and
pays for research provided by 29 NHS Trusts (including this Trust) plus 3 Universities. The total income for the Network is
c.£26.9m. The Network operates on a break even basis. Income for this segment derives from Research and Development
(contract) as disclosed in Note 4 of the accounts.

Total

Clinical Research 

Network: West 

Midlands

Healthcare Services

All assets & liabilities are reported to the Trust Board at a consolidated level so it is not possible to separate these by segment.
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Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

2019/20 2018/19
Income from patient care activities received from: £000 £000 

NHS England 147,919 108,716 
Clinical commissioning groups 380,927 352,760 
Department of Health and Social Care 0 4,934 
Other NHS providers 1,574 1,709 
NHS other 342 0 
Local authorities 8,619 8,609 
Non-NHS: private patients 1,020 1,010 
Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 260 291 
Injury cost recovery scheme 1,418 1,196 
Non NHS: other 7,144 10,738 

Total income from activities 549,223 489,963 
Of which:

Related to continuing operations 549,223 489,963 

Note 3.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Income recognised this year 260 291 
Cash payments received in-year 132 130 
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (27) 44 
Amounts written off in-year 16 189 

Note 4 Other operating income

Contract 

income

Non-contract 

income Total

Contract 
income

Non-contract 
income Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Research and development 29,671 0 29,671 30,675 0 30,675 
Education and training 16,639 721 17,360 17,474 426 17,900 
Non-patient care services to other bodies 44,159 0 44,159 22,674 0 22,674 
Provider sustainability fund (PSF) 7,957 0 7,957 12,230 0 12,230 
Marginal rate emergency tariff funding (MRET) 2,254 0 2,254 0 0 0 
Income in respect of employee benefits accounted on a gross basis 6,185 0 6,185 0 0 0 
Receipt of capital grants and donations 0 102 102 0 289 289 
Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers ** 0 6,000 6,000 0 6,000 6,000 
Rental revenue from operating leases 0 922 922 0 341 341 
Other income * 12,281 0 12,281 12,903 0 12,903 

Total other operating income 119,146 7,745 126,891 95,956 7,056 103,012 
Of which:

Related to continuing operations 126,891 103,012 

** Support from Department of Health and Social Care for mergers relates to income received following the dissolution of Mid-Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust.

Note 5.1 Additional information on contract revenue (IFRS 15) recognised in the period

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in within 
contract liabilities at the previous period end 1,712 581 

Note 5.2 Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

within one year 0 0 
after one year, not later than five years 0 0 
after five years 0 0 

Total revenue allocated to remaining performance obligations 0 0 

2019/20 2018/19

* Other contract income includes car parking income, catering income, pharmacy sales, staff accommodation rental and other income generation schemes (recognised under 
IFRS 15).

Revenue from existing contracts allocated to remaining performance 
obligations is expected to be recognised:

The Trust has exercised the practical expedients permitted by IFRS 15 paragraph 121 in preparing this disclosure. Revenue from (i) contracts with an expected duration of one
year or less and (ii) contracts where the trust recognises revenue directly corresponding to work done to date is not disclosed.
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Note 6 Fees and charges 

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Income 5,958 5,373 
Full cost (3,068) (2,644)

Surplus / (deficit) 2,890 2,729 

Note 7.1 Operating expenses 

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 3,694 3,340 

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 1,391 1,038 

Staff and executive directors costs 406,288 353,210 

Remuneration of non-executive directors 102 87 

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs) 70,502 52,256 

Supplies and services - general 10,877 10,656 

Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 56,932 57,826 

Inventories written down 0 15 

Consultancy costs 1,389 1,631 

Establishment 5,894 4,467 

Premises 23,084 21,016 

Transport (including patient travel) 2,455 2,017 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19,846 14,208 

Amortisation on intangible assets 662 367 

Net impairments (1,327) 1,731 

Movement in credit loss allowance: contract receivables / contract assets (651) 82 

Audit fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statutory audit 63 59 

other auditor remuneration (external auditor only) 6 9 

Internal audit costs 170 137 

Clinical negligence 12,718 12,608 

Legal fees 557 349 

Insurance 177 112 

Research and development 25,740 29,740 

Education and training 7,219 5,395 

Rentals under operating leases 2,407 2,564 

Redundancy 993 0 

Charges to operating expenditure for on-SoFP IFRIC 12 schemes (e.g. PFI / LIFT) 2,403 2,329 

Car parking & security 1,290 681 

Losses, ex gratia & special payments 0 2 

Other 1,851 1,458 

Total 656,732 579,390 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations 656,732 579,390 

HM Treasury requires disclosure of fees and charges income. The following disclosure is of income from charges to service users 
where income from that service exceeds £1 million and is presented as the aggregate of such income. The cost associated with the 
service that generated the income is also disclosed. 

The fees and charges income generated by the Trust include income from non-patient care income generation activities such as
car parking, staff residences and catering. The objective is to ensure all costs associated with the operation of such activities are
covered and that any surplus generated for the Trust is used to re-invest in the operation of its core services.
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Note 7.2 Other auditor remuneration 

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:

1. Audit of accounts of any associate of the Trust 0 0 
2. Audit-related assurance services 6 9 
3. Taxation compliance services 0 0 
4. All taxation advisory services not falling within item 3 above 0 0 
5. Internal audit services 0 0 
6. All assurance services not falling within items 1 to 5 0 0 
7. Corporate finance transaction services not falling within items 1 to 6 above 0 0 
8. Other non-audit services not falling within items 2 to 7 above 0 0 

Total 6 9 

Note 7.3 Limitation on auditor's liability 

Note 8 Impairment of assets 

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting from:

Abandonment of assets in course of construction 81 0 
Changes in market price (1,408) 1,731 

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit (1,327) 1,731 
Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve 0 0 

Total net impairments (1,327) 1,731 

Note 9.1 Employee benefits 

2019/20 2018/19
Total Total
£000 £000 

Salaries and wages 323,477 290,533 
Social security costs 31,042 28,129 
Apprenticeship levy 1,605 1,439 
Employer's contributions to NHS pensions 54,543 34,423 
Termination benefits 1,074 111 
Temporary staff (including agency) 7,358 9,758 

Total gross staff costs 419,099 364,393 
Recoveries in respect of seconded staff 0 0 

Total staff costs 419,099 364,393 
Of which

Costs capitalised as part of assets 600 481 

Note 9.2 Retirements due to ill-health 

[In line with the GAM, employee benefits should be shown in the accounts note in a single column for all categories of 

During 2019/20 there were 2 early retirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (2 in the year ended 31
March 2019).  The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £65k (£50k in 2018/19).  

These estimated costs are calculated on an average basis and will be borne by the NHS Pension Scheme.

There is no limitation on auditor's liability for external audit work carried out for the financial years 2019/20 or 2018/19.
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Note 10 Pension costs

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking
into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and
employers. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results
of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019. The employer contribution rate payable from
April 2019 to 20.6%, and the Scheme Regulations were amended accordingly.

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set
following the 2012 valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced
a pause to that part of the valuation process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process. 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as
equal to the contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that
would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between
formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s
Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting
period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as
providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March
2020, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2019, updated to 31 March 2020 with summary global member and
accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are
published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
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# Note 11 Operating leases 

#

Land Building Other Total Total
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Operating lease revenue

Minimum lease receipts 0 922 0 922 341 
Total 0 922 0 922 341 

Land Building Other Total Total

31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Future minimum lease receipts due: 

- not later than one year; 0 579 0 579 313 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 0 703 0 703 889 

Total 0 1,282 0 1,282 1,202 

# Note 11.2 The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust as a lessee

Land Building Other Total Total
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2018/19

Operating lease expense £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Minimum lease payments 0 2,309 98 2,407 2,564 

Total 0 2,309 98 2,407 2,564 

31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Future minimum lease payments due: 

- not later than one year; 0 1,983 47 2,030 129 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 0 6,298 94 6,392 240 

Total 0 8,281 141 8,422 369 
Future minimum sublease payments to be received 0 0 

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust is the lessor.

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust is the
lessee.

Included within this note are a number of third party services and retail outlets on site with whom the Trust have a leasing arrangement.

Included in this note is the arrangement for the lease of buildings from NHS Property Services which were previously owned by Wolverhampton
City PCT. The value of this arrangement is £2.5m per annum, some of the leased properties transferring to the Trust and others being
transferred to NHS Property Services. There are no other individually significant operating leases included in the figures below:

Note 11.1 The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust as a lessor
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Note 12 Finance income 

Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000 
Interest on bank accounts 186 127 

Total finance income 186 127 

Note 13.1 Finance expenditure 

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money or asset financing.
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000 
Interest expense:

Finance leases 13 17 
Main finance costs on PFI and LIFT schemes obligations 547 574 
Contingent finance costs on PFI and  LIFT scheme obligations 1,569 1,481 

Total interest expense 2,129 2,072 
Unwinding of discount on provisions (3) 2 

Total finance costs 2,126 2,074 

Note 13.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public Contract Regulations 2015 

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Total liability accruing in year under this legislation as a result of late payments 4 0 Amounts included within interest payable arising from claims made under this 
legislation 0 0 
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation 0 0 

Note 14 Other gains / (losses) 

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Gains on disposal of assets 53 60 
Total other gains / (losses) 53 60 
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Note 15.1 Intangible assets - 2019/20

Software  

licences

Intangible assets 

under 

construction Total 

£000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2019 - brought forward 4,022 1,756 5,778 

Additions 218 428 646 

Reclassifications 1,360 (1,360) 0 

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2020 5,600 824 6,424 

Amortisation at 1 April 2019 - brought forward 3,153 0 3,153 

Provided during the year 662 0 662 

Amortisation at 31 March 2020 3,815 0 3,815 

Net book value at 31 March 2020 1,785 824 2,609 

Net book value at 1 April 2019 869 1,756 2,625 

Note 15.2 Intangible assets - 2018/19

Software  

licences

Intangible assets 

under 

construction Total 

£000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2018 - as previously stated 3,941 0 3,941 
Prior period adjustments 0 0 0 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2018 - restated 3,941 0 3,941 
Additions 121 1,756 1,877 
Disposals / derecognition (40) 0 (40)

Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2019 4,022 1,756 5,778 

Amortisation at 1 April 2018 - as previously stated 2,826 0 2,826 
Prior period adjustments 0 0 0 

Amortisation at 1 April 2018 - restated 2,826 0 2,826 
Provided during the year 367 0 367 
Disposals / derecognition (40) 0 (40)

Amortisation at 31 March 2019 3,153 0 3,153 

Net book value at 31 March 2019 869 1,756 2,625 
Net book value at 1 April 2018 1,115 0 1,115 

Note 15.3 Intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets are not revalued. They are valued at fair value using historic cost as an approximation.

Intangible assets are capitalised when they are capable of being used in a Trust's activities for more than one year, they can be 
valued and they have cost of at lease £5,000.

Intangible fixed assets held for operational use are valued at historical cost and are depreciated over the estimated life of the asset 
on a straight line basis, except capitalised Research and Development which is revalued using an appropriate index figure. The 
carrying value of intangible assets is reviewed for impairment at the end of the first full year following acquisition and in other periods 
if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Purchased computer software licences are capitalised as intangible fixed assets where expenditure of at least £5,000 is incurred. 
They are amortised over the shorter of the term of the licence and their useful economic lives, which is usually estimated at being 5 
years.
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Note 16.1 Property, plant and equipment - 2019/20

Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation/gross cost at 1 April 2019 - brought forward 9,236 269,953 1,502 19,911 88,256 836 21,848 6,783 418,325 

Additions 0 990 0 24,409 2,267 51 1,121 49 28,887 

Impairments 0 (187) 0 (81) 0 0 0 0 (268)

Reversals of impairments 336 1,259 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,595 

Revaluations 27 (6,988) (8) 0 0 0 0 0 (6,969)

Reclassifications 0 11,916 3 (19,275) 4,887 4 2,432 33 0 

Disposals / derecognition 0 0 0 0 (3,030) (63) 0 0 (3,093)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2020 9,599 276,943 1,497 24,964 92,380 828 25,401 6,865 438,477 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2019 - brought 

forward 0 0 0 0 59,931 616 17,638 5,685 83,870 

Provided during the year 0 10,466 64 0 6,769 47 2,267 233 19,846 

Revaluations 0 (10,466) (64) 0 0 0 0 0 (10,530)

Disposals / derecognition 0 0 0 0 (3,030) (63) 0 0 (3,093)

Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2020 0 0 0 0 63,670 600 19,905 5,918 90,093 

Net book value at 31 March 2020 9,599 276,943 1,497 24,964 28,710 228 5,496 947 348,384 

Net book value at 1 April 2019 9,236 269,953 1,502 19,911 28,325 220 4,210 1,098 334,455 

Note 16.2 Property, plant and equipment - 2018/19

Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2018 - as previously 

stated 9,236 275,433 1,561 8,384 85,737 709 21,275 6,780 409,115 

Additions 0 37 0 18,803 2,816 100 136 0 21,892 

Impairments 0 (2,088) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,088)

Reversals of impairments 0 357 0 0 0 0 0 0 357 

Revaluations 0 (7,959) (59) 0 0 0 0 0 (8,018)

Reclassifications 0 4,173 0 (7,276) 2,636 27 437 3 0 

Disposals / derecognition 0 0 0 0 (2,933) 0 0 0 (2,933)

Valuation/gross cost at 31 March 2019 9,236 269,953 1,502 19,911 88,256 836 21,848 6,783 418,325 

Accumulated depreciation at 1 April 2018 - as 

previously stated 0 0 0 0 55,957 580 15,780 5,416 77,733 

Provided during the year 0 5,099 39 0 6,907 36 1,858 269 14,208 

Revaluations 0 (5,099) (39) 0 0 0 0 0 (5,138)

Disposals / derecognition 0 0 0 0 (2,933) 0 0 0 (2,933)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2019 0 0 0 0 59,931 616 17,638 5,685 83,870 

Net book value at 31 March 2019 9,236 269,953 1,502 19,911 28,325 220 4,210 1,098 334,455 

Net book value at 1 April 2018 9,236 275,433 1,561 8,384 29,780 129 5,495 1,364 331,382 
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Note 16.3 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2019/20

Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2020

Owned - purchased 9,599 268,281 1,497 24,964 23,799 228 5,496 930 334,794 

Finance leased 0 0 0 0 1,381 0 0 0 1,381 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service concession 
arrangements 0 7,878 0 0 2,937 0 0 0 10,815 

Owned - donated 0 784 0 0 593 0 0 17 1,394 

NBV total at 31 March 2020 9,599 276,943 1,497 24,964 28,710 228 5,496 947 348,384 

Note 16.4 Property, plant and equipment financing - 2018/19

Land

Buildings 

excluding 

dwellings Dwellings

Assets under 

construction

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net book value at 31 March 2019

Owned - purchased 9,236 261,271 1,502 19,911 21,982 220 4,210 1,098 319,430 

Finance leased 0 0 0 0 1,582 0 0 0 1,582 

On-SoFP PFI contracts and other service concession 
arrangements 0 7,878 0 0 4,026 0 0 0 11,904 

Owned - donated 0 804 0 0 735 0 0 0 1,539 

NBV total at 31 March 2019 9,236 269,953 1,502 19,911 28,325 220 4,210 1,098 334,455 
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Note 17 Donations of property, plant and equipment

Note 18 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment

Note 19 Inventories

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Drugs 2,244 2,190 
Consumables 4,277 4,087 
Energy 197 150 
Other 183 180 

Total inventories 6,901 6,607 
of which:

Held at fair value less costs to sell 0 0 

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £71,967k (2018/19: £66,007k). Write-down of inventories
recognised as expenses for the year were £0k (2018/19: £15k).

The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust Charity was the donor of all assets donated to the Trust in the year ended 31
March 2020.

The fair value of land and buildings is determined by valuations carried out by a Professional Valuer GVA Grimley
Limited trading as Avison Young. The valuations are carried out in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) and Valuation Manual in so far as these terms are consistent with the agreed requirements of the
Department of Health and Social Care and HM Treasury. A desktop valuation (excluding assets under
construction/work in progress) was carried out as at 31 March 2020 and assets lives were also reviewed by GVA
Grimley Limited trading as Avison Young as at this date. This valuation was based on published data from the Building
Cost Information Service (BCIS) which provides a level of consistency in reporting and forecasting future trends. The
valuation and the associated data was based on all in forecast Tender Price Index (TPI) as at 31 March 2020.

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, as per RICS guidance the valuation includes a Material Valuation Uncertainty Clause.
It advises the Trust that "less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be attached to valuation than would
normally be the case". However it then goes on to state that "for the avoidance of doubt, the inclusion of the ‘material
valuation uncertainty’ declaration does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied upon". As such the Trust valuation
can still be relied upon to provide the fair value of the land and building of the Trust. 

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts
are not materially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in
existing use are determined as follows:   

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or
constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Assets that are held for their service potential and are in use are measured
subsequently at their current value in existing use. Assets that were most recently held for their service potential but are
surplus are measured at fair value under IFRS 13 where there are no restrictions preventing access to the market at
the reporting date and if it does not meet the requirement of IAS 40 or IFRS 5.

● Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use.
● Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost, modern equivalent asset basis.

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with IAS 23, Borrowing Costs. Assets are
revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.
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# Note 20.1 Receivables

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
£000 £000 

Current

Contract receivables 55,677 32,517 
Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets (1,336) (2,003)
Prepayments (non-PFI) 3,820 3,588 
PDC dividend receivable 209 564 
VAT receivable 1,707 972 
Other receivables 743 542 

Total current receivables 60,820 36,180 

Non-current

Prepayments (non-PFI) 18 0 
PFI prepayments - capital contributions 5,213 4,002 Clinician pension tax provision reimbursement funding 
from NHSE 1,301 0 

Total non-current receivables 6,532 4,002 

Of which receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 46,147 24,812 
Non-current 1,301 0 

# Note 20.2 Allowances for credit losses

Contract 

receivables 

and contract 

assets

All other 

receivables

Contract 
receivables 

and contract 
assets

All other 
receivables

£000 £000 £000 £000 
Allowances as at 1 April - brought forward 2,003 0 0 2,104 

Impact of implementing IFRS 9 (and IFRS 15) on 1 
April 2018 2,104 (2,104)
New allowances arising 434 0 778 0 
Changes in existing allowances (184) 0 0 0 
Reversals of allowances (901) 0 (696) 0 
Utilisation of allowances (write offs) (16) 0 (183) 0 

Allowances as at 31 Mar 2020 1,336 0 2,003 0 

# Note 20.3 Exposure to credit risk

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade and 

other 

receivables

Trade and 
other 

receivables
Ageing of impaired financial assets £000 £000 
0-30 days 66 16
31-60 days 38 13
61-90 days 82 27
91-180 days 108 165
Over 181 days 1,042 501
Total 1,336 722

Ageing of non-impaired financial assets past their 

due date0-30 days 1,428 269
31-60 days 427 61
61-90 days 164 125
91-180 days 596 58
Over 181 days 2,204 834
Total 4,819 1,347

The Trust is recognising full lifetime credit losses on initial recognition. Balances with Department of Health and Social
Care and associated agencies are assessed at zero credit risk, therefore are excluded from impairment calculation
below.

2018/192019/20
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# Note 21 Non-current assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups at 1 April 0 800 
Assets sold in year 0 (800)

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups at 31 March 0 0 

# Note 22.1 Cash and cash equivalents movements

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

At 1 April 15,988 16,982 
Net change in year (3,943) (994)

At 31 March 12,045 15,988 

Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand 67 24 
Cash with the Government Banking Service 11,978 15,964 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 12,045 15,988 
Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF 12,045 15,988 

# Note 22.2 Third party assets held by the Trust

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Monies on deposit 3 4 

Total third party assets 3 4 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily 
convertible investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the Trust on 
behalf of patients or other parties and in which the Trust has no beneficial interest. This has been excluded from the 
cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

Non-current asset disposed of in 2018/19 were the building and land relating to the former Eye Infirmary Unit on 
Compton Road, in Wolverhampton. These assets became surplus to requirements following the rationalisation of the 
Trust's estate onto the New Cross Hospital site. The Compton Road site was sold on 28th February 2019.
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Note 23 Trade and other payables

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Current 

Trade payables 15,375 20,939 
Capital payables 4,308 6,676 
Accruals 35,047 15,676 
Social security costs 4,669 4,354 
VAT payables 141 116 
Other taxes payable 3,629 3,589 
Other payables 5,741 5,461 

Total current trade and other payables 68,910 56,811 

Non-current

Other payables 68 0 
Total non-current trade and other payables 68 0 

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current 8,359 5,742 
Non-current 50 0 

Note 24 Other liabilities

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Current 

Deferred income: contract liabilities 3,300 3,009 
Total other current liabilities 3,300 3,009 

Non-current

Total other non-current liabilities 0 0 

Note 25.1 Borrowings

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Current 

Obligations under finance leases 196 196 
1,836 1,817 

Total current borrowings 2,032 2,013 

Non-current

Obligations under finance leases 1,105 1,270 
6,118 6,712 

Total non-current borrowings 7,223 7,982 

[Providers should explain significant movements in contract liability balances, 
including both qualitative and quantitative information. Significant changes may 

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts
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# Note 25.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2019/20

Loans from 

DHSC Other loans

Finance 

leases

PFI and LIFT 

schemes Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April 2019 0 0 1,466 8,529 9,995 

Cash movements:

Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of principal 0 0 (165) (1,818) (1,983)

Financing cash flows - payments of interest 0 0 (13) (547) (560)

Non-cash movements:

Additions 0 0 0 32 32 

Application of effective interest rate 0 0 13 547 560 

Other changes 0 0 0 1,211 1,211 

Carrying value at 31 March 2020 0 0 1,301 7,954 9,255 

# Note 25.3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2018/19

Loans from 

DHSC Other loans

Finance 

leases

PFI and LIFT 

schemes Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Carrying value at 1 April 2018 0 0 1,693 5,585 7,278 
Cash movements:

Financing cash flows - payments and receipts of principal 0 0 (227) (1,785) (2,012)
Financing cash flows - payments of interest 0 0 (17) (574) (591)

Non-cash movements:

Additions 0 0 0 4,729 4,729 
Application of effective interest rate 0 0 17 574 591 

Carrying value at 31 March 2019 0 0 1,466 8,529 9,995 

# Note 26 Finance leases

# Note 26.1 The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust as a lessee

Obligations under finance leases where the Trust is the lessee.
Land Buildings Other Total Total

31 March 

2020

31 March 

2020

31 March 

2020

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Gross lease liabilities 0 0 1,396 1,396 1,571 
of which liabilities are due:

- not later than one year; 0 0 211 211 211 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 0 0 833 833 844 
- later than five years. 0 0 352 352 516 

Finance charges allocated to future periods 0 0 (95) (95) (105)
Net lease liabilities 0 0 1,301 1,301 1,466 
of which payable:

- not later than one year; 0 0 196 196 196 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 0 0 775 775 784 
- later than five years. 0 0 330 330 486 

Total of future minimum sublease payments to be received at the reporting date 0 0 0 0 0 

Contingent rent recognised as expense in the period 0 0 0 0 0 

Note 27.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges analysis 

Pensions: 

injury 

benefits Legal claims

Clinicians 

Pension Tax 

Scheme Other Total 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

At 1 April 2019 584 240 0 4,330 5,154 

Arising during the year 60 186 1,301 3,707 5,254 

Utilised during the year (41) (116) 0 (2,649) (2,806)

Reversed unused 0 (102) 0 (554) (656)

Unwinding of discount (3) 0 0 0 (3)

At 31 March 2020 600 208 1,301 4,834 6,943 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year; 42 208 0 4,834 5,084 

- later than one year and not later than five years; 173 0 0 0 173 

- later than five years. 385 0 1,301 0 1,686 

Total 600 208 1,301 4,834 6,943 
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# Note 27.2 Clinical negligence liabilities

# Note 28 Contingent assets and liabilities

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Net value of contingent liabilities 0 0 
Net value of contingent assets 575 575 

# Note 29 Contractual capital commitments

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Property, plant and equipment 20,745 10,709 

Total 20,745 10,709 

1 Note 30 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements

Service payments are made to the operator monthly following the submission to the Trust of an invoice accompanied
by a Payment Report and a Performance Monitoring Report which list any payment adjustments.

Under IFRIC 12, the substance of the contract is that the Trust has a finance lease and payments comprising of two
elements - imputed finance lease charges and service charges. Details of the imputed finance lease charges are
provided in the following tables.

The Trust has one PFI scheme and this relates to the provision of Radiology services.

The Trust has submitted Fleming VAT reclaims totalling approximately £700k (2013/14 £700k) to H.M. Revenue and 
Customs under s.121 of the Finance Act 2008. During the Financial Year 2018/19 £125k plus £275k interest was 
received in respect to one of the Fleming VAT reclaims. The outcome and timing of the remaining balance of £575k of 
these claims is uncertain at 31 March 2020.

At 31 March 2020, £194,222k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities 
of The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust (31 March 2019: £209,709k).

The Trust and Wolverhampton Radiology Limited Company No: 4235982 (formally trading as Impregilo
Wolverhampton Limited) entered into a contract dated 20 March 2002 for the design, construction, financing and
equipping of, and provision of certain services in connection with the provision of a new serviced radiology facility.

The agreement allows for Variations to the project. For example there were contract variations in 2004 and again in
2010 in line with service requirement.

Operational period of contract years is 30 years. The SPV is now Wolverhampton Radiology Limited (Company No:
4235982) of Third Floor, Broad Quay House, Prince Street, Bristol, BS1 4DJ.
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# Note 30.1 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligations

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Gross PFI, LIFT or other service concession liabilities 10,081 10,995 
Of which liabilities are due

- not later than one year; 1,836 1,817 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 4,907 5,054 
- later than five years. 3,339 4,124 

Finance charges allocated to future periods (2,127) (2,466)
Net PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligation 7,954 8,529 

- not later than one year; 1,836 1,817 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 3,902 3,912 
- later than five years. 2,217 2,800 

# Note 30.2 Total on-SoFP PFI, LIFT and other service concession arrangement commitments

Total future commitments under these on-SoFP schemes are as follows:

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
Total future payments committed in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other service 

concession arrangements 83,785 89,928 

Of which payments are due:

- not later than one year; 6,325 6,169 
- later than one year and not later than five years; 25,956 25,597 
- later than five years. 51,504 58,162 

# Note 30.3 Analysis of amounts payable to service concession operator

This note provides an analysis of the unitary payments made to the service concession operator:

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Unitary payment payable to service concession operator 6,171 6,023 

Consisting of:

- Interest charge 547 574 
- Repayment of balance sheet obligation 1,818 1,785 
- Service element and other charges to operating expenditure 2,237 2,183 
- Contingent rent 1,569 1,481 

Other amounts paid to operator due to a commitment under the service concession 
contract but not part of the unitary payment 166 146 

Total amount paid to service concession operator 6,337 6,169 

The following obligations in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements are recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Position:
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Note 31 Financial instruments

Note 31.1 Financial risk management

The Trust's management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within
the Trust's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Board of Directors. Trust treasury activity is subject
to review by the Trust's internal auditors.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period
in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider
relationship that the Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust has with commissioners and the way those commissioners are
financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments
play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the
financial reporting standards mainly apply. The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial
assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing
the Trust in undertaking its activities.

Because the majority of the Trust's income arises from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low
exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure as at 31 March 2020 are in contract receivables, as disclosed in the
Trade and Other Receivables note.

Credit risk

The Trust borrows from the government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by the Strategic
Health Authority. The borrowings are for 1-25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged
at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.

Liquidity risk

The Trust's operating costs are primarily incurred under contracts with NHS Commissioning Organisations, which are
financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The Trust funds its capital expenditure from funds obtained
within its prudential borrowing limit. The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Market risk

The Trust is part of the NHS which is supported by the government and unless there is a major overall of healthcare
provision, most importantly a reduction to access to free healthcare, then the Trust has low market risk.

Currency risk

The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the
UK and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate
fluctuations.

Interest rate risk
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Note 31.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2020

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Total 

book value

£000 £000 

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 56,385 56,385 

Cash and cash equivalents 12,045 12,045 

Total at 31 March 2020 68,430 68,430 

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2019

Held at 
amortised cost

Total 
book value

£000 £000 
Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 31,056 31,056 
Cash and cash equivalents 15,988 15,988 

Total at 31 March 2019 47,044 47,044 

[Providers should make additional disclosures where in relation to financial assets any of the following apply: 
Financial assets and liabilities have been offset (IFRS 7, paragraphs 13A to 13F)Financial assets have been pledged as collateral (IFRS 7, paragraphs 14 and 15)]

Note 31.3 Carrying values of financial liabilities

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020

Held at 

amortised 

cost

Total 

book value

£000 £000 

Obligations under finance leases 1,301 1,301 

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 7,954 7,954 

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 54,671 54,671 

Total at 31 March 2020 63,926 63,926 

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2019

Held at 
amortised cost

Total 
book value

£000 £000 
Obligations under finance leases 1,466 1,466 
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 8,529 8,529 
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 43,045 43,045 

Total at 31 March 2019 53,040 53,040 

Note 31.4 Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 

2020

31 March 
2019

£000 £000 
In one year or less 56,703 45,058 
In more than two years but not more than five years 4,677 5,144 
In more than five years 2,546 2,838 
Total 63,926 53,040 

Note 31.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

[Where assets designated as FV through I&E or equity instruments designated at FV through OCI on 

Financial assets have been reclassified between measurement categories, other than on 

Book value used as a reasonable approximation of fair value for financial assets and liabilities.
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Note 32 Losses and special payments

Total 

number of 

cases

Total 

value of 

cases

Total 
number of 

cases
Total value 

of cases
Number £000 Number £000 

Losses

Cash losses 1 0 12 3 
Fruitless payments 3 0 1 18 
Bad debts and claims abandoned 21 17 213 406 

Total losses 25 17 226 427 

Special payments

Ex-gratia payments 48 106 41 81 
Extra-statutory and extra-regulatory payments 0 0 0 0 

Total special payments 48 106 42 83 
Total losses and special payments 73 123 268 510 

# Note 33 Related parties

Birmingham Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
Birmingham Women's and Children's Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Black Country Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Community Health Partnerships 
Department of Health and Social Care 
Health Education England 
HM Revenue & Customs - Other taxes and duties and NI contributions
HM Revenue & Customs - VAT
Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Midlands Regional Office
NHS Birmingham and Solihull CCG
NHS Blood and Transplant
NHS Cannock Chase CCG
NHS Dudley CCG
NHS England - Core - 18/19 PSF reallocation 
NHS England - Core (including 19/20 PSF, FRF and MRET)
NHS England - East Midlands Specialised Commissioning Hub
NHS England - West Midlands Specialised Commissioning Hub
NHS Pension Scheme
NHS Resolution (formerly NHS Litigation Authority)
NHS Sandwell and West Birmingham CCG
NHS Shropshire CCG
NHS South East Staffs and Seisdon Peninsula CCG
NHS Stafford and Surrounds CCG
NHS Telford and Wrekin CCG
NHS Walsall CCG
NHS Wolverhampton CCG
Sandwell And West Birmingham Hospitals NHS Trust
Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust
The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust
University Hospitals Birmingham NHS Foundation Trust
University Hospitals Coventry And Warwickshire NHS Trust
University Hospitals of North Midlands NHS Trust
Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust
Wolverhampton City Council
Worcestershire Acute Hospitals NHS Trust

2019/20 2018/19

During the year none of the Department of Health and Social Care Ministers, Trust Board members or members of the key
management staff, or parties related to any of them, has undertaken any material transactions with The Royal Wolverhampton NHS
Trust.

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year 2019/20 the Trust has had a significant
number of material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent
Department.  These entities are listed below where income and/or expenditure has been in excess of £500,000. 

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from a number of charitable funds for which the Trust acts as the
Corporate Trustee, under the umbrella of Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust Charitable Funds. Charitable funds held by the Trust are a
related party as the Trust is Corporate Trustee for the funds. 
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Note 34 Better Payment Practice code

2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2018/19
Non-NHS Payables Number £000 Number £000 

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 114,108 315,653 113,985 285,615 
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 45,464 193,308 37,533 167,332 

Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 39.8% 61.2% 32.9% 58.6%

NHS Payables

Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 3,221 45,722 3,271 52,602 
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 1,121 24,857 1,447 35,904 
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 34.8% 54.4% 44.2% 68.3%

Note 35 External financing limit

The Trust is given an external financing limit against which it is permitted to underspend
2019/20 2018/19

£000 £000 
Cash flow financing 15,420 3,414 

External financing requirement 15,420 3,414 
External financing limit (EFL) 18,046 3,494 

Under / (over) spend against EFL 2,626 80 

Note 36 Capital Resource Limit 

2019/20 2018/19
£000 £000 

Gross capital expenditure 29,533 23,769 
Less: Disposals 0 (800)
Less: Donated and granted capital additions (102) (289)

Charge against Capital Resource Limit 29,431 22,680 

Capital Resource Limit 29,431 22,693 
Under / (over) spend against CRL 0 13 

Note 37 Breakeven duty financial performance 

2019/20 2019/20

£000 £000 

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) (control total basis) 5,143 5,143 
Remove impairments scoring to Departmental Expenditure Limit 81 81 
Add back income for impact of 2018/19 post-accounts PSF reallocation 511 511 
Breakeven duty financial performance surplus / (deficit) 5,735 5,735 

The Better Payment Practice code requires the NHS body to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of 
receipt of valid invoice, whichever is later. 
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Note 38 Breakeven duty rolling assessment 

1997/98 to 

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Breakeven duty in-year financial 
performance 8,035 7,964 9,297 8,688 7,891 
Breakeven duty cumulative position (7,438) 597 8,561 17,858 26,546 34,437 
Operating income 289,830 306,023 374,417 384,917 394,045 
Cumulative breakeven position as a 

percentage of operating income 0.2% 2.8% 4.8% 6.9% 8.7%

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Breakeven duty in-year financial 
performance 3,663 153 8,542 4,327 3,021 5,735 
Breakeven duty cumulative position 38,100 38,253 46,795 51,122 54,143 59,877 
Operating income 461,810 509,405 536,028 548,538 592,975 676,114 
Cumulative breakeven position as a 

percentage of operating income 8.3% 7.5% 8.7% 9.3% 9.1% 8.9%

NHS Improvement has provided guidance that the first year for consideration for the breakeven duty should be 
2009/10. The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust is subject to a three year period for recovery of any deficit incurred.

Breakeven duty financial performance is determined as guided by NHS Improvement, in a manner consistent with 
previous years in this note.
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English 

If you need information in another way like easy read or a different language 
please let us know.    

If you need an interpreter or assistance please let us know.   

 

Lithuanian 

Jeigu norėtumėte, kad informacija jums būtų pateikta kitu būdu, pavyzdžiui, 
supaprastinta forma ar kita kalba, prašome mums apie tai pranešti. 

Jeigu jums reikia vertėjo ar kitos pagalbos, prašome mums apie tai pranešti. 

 

Polish 

Jeżeli chcieliby Państwo otrzymać te informacje w innej postaci, na przykład w 
wersji łatwej do czytania lub w innym języku, prosimy powiedzieć nam o tym. 

Prosimy poinformować nas również, jeżeli potrzebowaliby Państwo usługi 
tłumaczenia ustnego lub innej pomocy.  

 

Punjabi 

ਜੇ ਤੁਹਾਨੂੂੰ  ਇਹ ਜਾਣਕਾਰੀ ਕਕਸੇ ਹੋਰ ਰੂਪ ਕਿਚ, ਕਜਿੇਂ ਪੜ੍ਹਨ ਕਿਚ ਆਸਾਨ ਰੂਪ ਜਾਂ ਕਕਸੇ ਦੂਜੀ ਭਾਸ਼ਾ ਕਿਚ, 
ਚਾਹੀਦੀ ਹੈ ਤਾਂ ਕਕਰਪਾ ਕਰਕੇ ਸਾਨੂੂੰ  ਦੱਸੋ।  

ਜੇ ਤੁਹਾਨੂੂੰ  ਦੁਭਾਸ਼ੀਏ ਦੀ ਜਾਂ ਸਹਾਇਤਾ ਦੀ ਲੋੜ੍ ਹੈ ਤਾਂ ਕਕਰਪਾ ਕਰਕੇ ਸਾਨੂੂੰ  ਦੱਸੋ।  

 

Romanian 

Dacă aveți nevoie de informații în alt format, ca de exemplu caractere ușor de 
citit sau altă limbă, vă rugăm să ne informați. 

Dacă aveți nevoie de un interpret sau de asistență, vă rugăm să ne informați.  

 

Traditional Chinese 

如如果果您您需需要要以以其其他他方方式式了了解解信信息息，，如如易易读读或或其其他他语语种种，，请请告告诉诉我我们们。。    

如如果果您您需需要要口口译译人人员员或或帮帮助助，，请请告告诉诉我我们们。。 

 




